

NATIONAL CONSUMER COMMISSION

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN

(2017/18 to 2019/20)

30 January 2017

A: Abbreviations and commonly used acronyms

CCRD - Consumer and Corporate Regulation Division

CPA - Consumer Protection Act No. 68 of 2008

the dti - Department of Trade and Industry

HR - Human resource/s

ICT - Information and communications technology

Minister - Minister of Trade and Industry

MOU - Memorandum of Understanding

MTSF - Medium Term Strategic Framework

NCC - National Consumer Commission

PFMA - Public Finance Management Act

SLA - Service Level Agreement

Table of Contents		
1: Organisational Structure	4	
2: Official plan sign-off	7	
3: Foreword by the Minister	8	
4: Overview by the Commissioner `	9	
PART A: STRATEGIC OVERVIEW Vision Mission Value statements Strategic goals / Objectives Materiality and Significance Framework Recent Court Rulings UPDATED SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS Performance Delivery Environment Organisational Delivery Environment	11 11 11 12 12 14 16 17 22	
Alignment to the dti Description of the Planning Process Financial Plan	26 26 27	
PART B: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE Programme 1 - Administration Programme 2 - To promote Consumer Protection and Consumer Safety Programme 3 - To promote reform of consumer protection legislation Programme 4 - To conduct research and to promote public awareness on consumer protection matters	33 33 35 45 51	

National Consumer Commission (NCC) Annual Performance Plan 2017/18-2019/20 draft 3 v1

PART C: LINKS TO OTHER PLANS	60
Asset Management Plan	60
Information Technology Plan	61
Risk Management and Fraud Prevention Plan	62
Risk strategy	62
Service Delivery Improvement Plan	62
Indicator Profiles	62

1. Organisational Structure

The NCC is made up of the following divisions: Corporate Services; Enforcement and Investigation; Legal Services; Advocacy, Education and Awareness; and Research, Analysis and Knowledge Management.

The accounting authority for the NCC is the Commissioner assisted by the Deputy Commissioner. Both the Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner are appointed by the Minister of Trade and Industry (Minister) and their appointments are approved by Cabinet.

The NCC has 85 funded posts.

The NCC has engaged the services of the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) to assist and guide the NCC with the revision of its organizational design and matters related thereto, including the issue of job evaluations. Meaningful discussions, involving senior managers, members of staff and members of NCC Nehawu, have commenced and will be finalised in 2016/17 year. No jobs will be shed at the end of the process.

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

The equity and skills of the employees of the NCC as at 31 March 2016 are broken down in the following three tables.

Levels	MALE									
	Afri	ican	Cold	oured	Ind	ian	White			
	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target		
Top Management	0		0		1		0			
Senior Management	7		0		1		1			
Professional qualified	9		2		0		0			
Skilled	1		0		0		0			
Semi-skilled	15		0		0		0			
TOTAL	32		2		2		1			
Levels	FEMALE									
	Afri	can	Colo	ured	Ind	ian	White			
	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target		
Top Management	1		0		0		0			
Senior Management	5		0		0		0			
Professional qualified	8		0		0		0			
Skilled	4		0		0		0			
Semi-skilled	18		0		0		0			
TOTAL	36		0		0		0			

Levels	DISABLED STAFF									
	African		Coloured		Indian		White			
	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target	Current	Target		
Top Management	0		0		0		0			
Senior Management	0		0		0		1			
Professional qualified	0		0		0		0			
Skilled	0		0		0		0			
Semi-skilled	1		0		0		0			
TOTAL	1		0		0		1			

2: Official plan sign-off		
It is hereby certified that this annual performan	ce plan:	
 Was developed by the management of the 	National Consumer Commission under the guidance of the	Commissioner, Mr. Ebrahim Mohamed
 Was prepared in line with the current Strat 	egic Plan of the National Consumer Commission;	
 Accurately reflects the performance targe available in the budget for 2017/18 financia 	ts which the National Consumer Commission will endeavou al year.	r to achieve given the resources made
Ms N Nkoana	Mr N Kuljeeth	Ms T Mabuza
Chief Financial Officer	Company Secretary	Deputy Commissione
Recommended for approval by:		
Mr E Mohamed	Date	
Commissioner		

3. Foreword by the Minister

In terms of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA), I have to ensure that every public entity that I am responsible for, must comply with the provisions of the PFMA and in the case of the National Consumer Commission (NCC), it must also comply with the provisions of the Consumer Protection Act 68 of 2008 (CPA). I am satisfied that the NCC's past focus on complying with the PFMA, is on track. This must be maintained and improved, in line with the guidance provided by its relevant governence structure.

One of my key focus areas insofar as the NCC is concerned, particularly in this strategic period, is to ensure that the NCC meets its policy objectives as contained in the CPA. To this end, I aim to ensure that the NCC, focusses on the following key priority areas:

- 1) Promotion of effective relations with provinicial consumer protection authorities, enforcement agencies and other regulators;
- 2) Improving consumer awareness and information and encouraging responsible and informed consumer choice and behaviour;
- 3) Providing for a consistent, accessible and efficeient system of consensual resolution of disputes arising from from consumer transactions;
- 4) Conduct research and propose policies to me in relation to the realisation and full enjoyment of consumer rights by vulnerable consumers;
- 5) Enforcement of of the CPA by monitoring the consumer market to ensure that prohibited conduct and offences are prevented or detected and prosecuted;
- 6) Education and awareness on labelling across the deifferent sectors and working in collaboration with other entities and Departments; and
- 7) Improved publication of the work undertaken by the NCC.

National Consumer Commission (NCC) Annual Performance Plan 2017/18-2019/20 draft 3 v1

I do understand that the NCC is a small entity, with limited resources. However, it is imperative that the NCC maximises delivery to consumers. I would expect that business would cooperate with the NCC in ensuring that consumers realise the benefits of the provisions of the CPA and thereby promote the proliferation of ethical business practices throughout and beyond the borders of the Republic of South Africa.

Dr Rob Davies, MP Minister of Trade and Industry

4. Overview by the Commissioner

I am pleased to present this 3 year annual performance plan of the National Consumer Commission ("the NCC"). It sets out the key focus areas for the NCC over the financial years 2017/18 to 2019/20 and follows from the strategic plan of the NCC.

The NCC was established in terms of section 85 of the Consumer Protection Act No. 68 of 2008 ("the Act") Act and began exercising its mandate with effect from 1 April 2011.

It is evident from its recent history that the NCC cannot investigate all consumer complaints on its own. It has to work closely with other key stakeholders to promote the resolution of consumer complaints. Hence, one of its focus areas is the engagement with targeted industries on the submission of industry codes and the creation of alternate dispute resolution schemes within these industries. The NCC has enjoyed some success in this regard, now that the ombud schemes for the motor industry and the consumer goods and services industry have been accredited by Minister. It is envisaged that other similar schemes will be recommended for accreditation by Minister over this planning period.

This plan is aligned to the South African consumer policy prerogatives as espoused in the Consumer Protection Act (CPA). This has been highlighted in 2015 by Minister as well as by representatives of the DPSA. Minister and the DPSA have rightly pointed out that the NCC must focus on its key legislative mandate. This necessitated a reconsideration of its planning in line with its legislative mandate. The strategic, annual performance and business plans remain highly ambitious in view of the fact that the NCC has very limited resources. However, despite

National Consumer Commission (NCC) Annual Performance Plan 2017/18-2019/20 draft 3 v1

these challenges I implore all staff members and stakeholders of the NCC to adopt this performance plan and play their role in fulfilling it with commitment and zeal. It is of immense importance for the economy of South Africa and for consumers in particular, that little or no room is left for unscrupulous business to operate within the borders of the Republic.

Mr E Mohamed

Commissioner

PART A: STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

5. Vision

In pursuance of its strategic mandate as enshrined in the CPA, the vision of the NCC is: "To be the leading institution in consumer protection that is professional, responsive and effective."

6. Mission

The mission of the NCC is: "To promote compliance with the Consumer Protection Act through advocacy and enforcement, in order to ensure fair business practice and uphold social and economic welfare of consumers".

7. Values

Values are common traits and attributes which guide the manner in which the organisation will relate with its stakeholders and operate. They are intended to define and shape the culture of the NCC and guide how staff members interact both internally and with stakeholders.

The NCC's value statements are:

- a. **Professionalism and Ethical conduct** Promote and maintain a high standard of professional ethic and promote efficient, effective and economic use of resources.
- b. **Efficiency & effectiveness** Promote efficient, effective and economic use of resources.
- c. **Transparency** Fostering a culture wherein the bases upon which decisions are made are consistent and transparent
- d. **Accountability** Accepting responsibility for our own actions.
- e. Teamwork Promote coherent and effective teams within the NCC

8. Strategic goals or objectives

The strategic objectives articulated below were arrived at through a careful assessment of the environment in which the NCC operates. The planning that resulted in the production of this annual performance plan gathered up-to-date information about the organisation's internal strengths and weaknesses, and its external opportunities and threats (challenges). This analysis also considered political, economic, social, environmental and technological aspects applicable to the NCC. Through this exercise, the workshops were able to refine and reshape the list of critical questions facing the NCC, and thus defining the critical strategic tasks facing the NCC over the next five years.

The following are the strategic outcomes that will be pursued by the NCC over the next three years:

- Administration;
- To promote Consumer Protection and Consumer Safety;
- To promote reform of consumer policy and consumer protection legislation; and
- To conduct research and to promote public awareness on consumer protection matters.

9. Materiality and Significance Framework

The NCC as a public entity listed in Schedule 3A must annually submit a proposed strategic plan for approval by **the dti**. Such a plan must be submitted as agreed to between **the dti** and the public entity. The strategic plan must – include the materiality/significant framework, referred to in Treasury Regulation 28.3.1

In terms of Treasury Regulation 28.3.1 and for purposes of material [section 55 (2) of the PFMA] and significant [section 54 (2) of the PFMA], the NCC must develop and agree a framework of acceptable levels of materiality and significance with **the dti**.

Whereas, the NCC agrees, in line with section 54 (2) of the PFMA, to the following:

- 1) Prior to concluding any of the following transactions, the NCC shall promptly and in writing inform the Treasury of the transaction and submit relevant particulars of the transaction to **the dti** for approval of the transaction:
 - (a) Establishment or participation in the establishment of a company;
 - (b) Participation in a significant partnership, trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar arrangement;
 - (c) Acquisition or disposal of a significant shareholding in a company;
 - (d) Acquisition or disposal of a significant asset;
 - (e) Commencement or cessation of a significant business activity; and a significant change in the nature or extent of its interest in a significant partnership, trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar arrangement.

The NCC may assume that approval has been given if it receives no response from **the dti** on a submission in relating to any of the aforementioned within 45 days.

The dti has not granted any exemptions upfront to the NCC from any of the aforementioned matters.

In terms of 55 (2) of the PFMA, it is accepted that the annual report and financial statements of the NCC must—

(a) Fairly present the state of affairs of the NCC, its business, its financial results, its performance against predetermined objectives and its financial position as at the end of the financial year concerned. The annual report and financial statements shall include particulars of—

- (i) Any material losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure that occurred during the financial year;
- (ii) Any criminal or disciplinary steps taken as a consequence of such losses or irregular expenditure or fruitless and wasteful expenditure;
- (iii) Any losses recovered or written off,
- (iv) Any financial assistance received from the state and commitments made by the state on its behalf and
- (v) Any other matters that may be prescribed.

Further, the NCC shall submit the annual report and financial statements report and statements for tabling in Parliament, to **the dti** through the Public Entity Oversight Unit of **the dti**.

10. Recent Court Rulings

The NCC continually reviews key decisions of the National Consumer Tribunal, High Courts and Constitutional Court and evaluates the potential impact on its mandate and functions for consideration during planning processes.

The NCC continually reviews key decisions of the National Consumer Tribunal, High Courts and Constitutional Court. It evaluates the potential impact on its mandate and functions for consideration during planning processes.

In line with its strategic plan, the NCC continuously assesses the need for and submits recommendations to Minister for the accreditation of industry codes. Once these codes are accredited, then as part of its monitoring function, the NCC will constantly analyse the decisions of accredited alternative dispute resolution (ADR) schemes with a view to determining trends and emerging concerns for both consumers and business.

The National Treasury has announced the Implementation of the Twin Peaks model of financial regulation. It has been further announced that the twin peaks regulatory framework will provide a comprehensive framework for regulating the financial sector. This is a multi-year and two phased project. The intention is to establish two regulatory bodies, namely a Prudential Authority within the Reserve Bank and a Market Conduct Authority. The former Authority will be responsible for the oversight of the safety and soundness of banks, insurers and financial conglomerates. The latter Authority seeks to protect customers of financial services firms and to improve the way financial service providers conduct their business.

This then means that the business practices of banks, long term and short term insurers will no longer be regulated by the Consumer Protection Act. The policy is in line with international agreements that bind the Republic of South Africa. The NCC can only encourage the establishment of sector specific regulators that would serve the interest of consumers. However, it must be understood that the Consumer Protection Act is the current yardstick for the protection afforded to consumers in general, whichever sector consumers transact in. The NCC will always be supportive of regulators seeking to protect consumers provided that these regulators are enabled to provide an equivalent or better protection to consumers than that which is contained in the Consumer Protection Act. This is intrinsic to the Consumer Protect Act. Very importantly, the Twin Peaks model makes provision for cooperation amongst regulators, the NCC, included. Provision for such cooperation will have to be considered going forward.

11. Updated Situational Analysis

The elected manner of conducting a situational analysis was through a detailed SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats) analysis conducted at a workshop on the 26-27 November 2015. The results are tabled below:

	STRENGTHS		WEAKNESSES
1.	Clearly defined mandate. Knowing what to do.	1.	Inadequate information and communications technology ("ICT") systems.
2. 3.	Easy access to leadership of the NCC. Learning and growing organisation – Opportunity to innovate.	2. 3. 4.	Human & Financial resource constraints. Inadequate internal business processes. Inadequate skills and capacity building.
4.	Support of the Executive Authority and Parliament.	5. 6.	Working in silos. Low staff morale.
5.	Young and vibrant workplace - that can be easily galvanised.		
6. 7.	Diverse skills. Genuine need for NCC services.		
	OPPORTUNITIES		THREATS
1. 2.	Establishing a national presence. Working with other agencies within consumer protection environment.	1. 2.	Poor working relations with other regulators. Inadequate resources to fully achieve its mandate.
3.	Influencing the status of consumer protection locally and internationally.	3.4.	Lack of strategy to enable the NCC to work with the consumer protection groups. Safety and security of enforcement staff may be compromised.

11.1 Performance Delivery Environment

Consumer protection is an integral part of a modern, efficient, effective and just market place. Confident consumers are one of the important drivers of competitiveness. By demanding competitive prices, improved product quality and better service, consumers provide an impetus for innovation and enhanced performance by business. The Consumer Protection Act is a critical part of **the dti**'s overall strategy to improve the competitiveness of business in South Africa.

In revising the consumer protection framework, **the dti**'s intention was to create an environment where a culture of consumer rights and responsibilities prevails. Such an environment is not only beneficial to consumers but to business as well. The enforcement of the Consumer Protection Act assists in regulating the conduct of suppliers of goods and services to consumers. If left unchecked, unethical traders will merely serve to hinder the creation of a fair, competitive and equitable environment for all. Prior to the enactment of the Consumer Protection Act, South Africa lagged behind other international jurisdictions in protecting its consumers. The global and domestic trading environment has changed significantly over time. Markets have opened up and there has been a significant increase in the movement of people, goods and services across borders. The incidence of scams and unfair practices, on the other hand, has become more sophisticated.

The need to enforce the Consumer Protection Act is critical to:

- establishing a legal framework for the achievement of a fair, accessible, responsible and sustainable market;
- reducing any disadvantages experienced in accessing the supply of goods and services by low income, low literacy, rural and vulnerable consumers;
- Promoting fair business practices;
- Protecting consumers from unfair and deceptive conduct;
- Improving consumer awareness; and

- Providing for an accessible, efficient and effective system of redress;

The Consumer protection Act applies to:

- Suppliers (for profit or non-profit) that promote or supply goods or services to consumers across all sectors of the economy unless exempted;
- Government institutions or any entity contracted by the state to provide goods or services to consumers;
- Franchise offers, solicitations and agreements; and to
- Any business to business transaction subject to a stipulated two million rand turnover per annum threshold.

Consumer Protection is a concurrent functional area of national and provincial legislative competence. Provincial consumer protection authorities exist in all provinces. Provincial consumer courts have jurisdiction over complaints of unfair business practices in terms of their respective legislations. A consumer court can declare a business practice unfair and in contravention of a provincial legislation and order appropriate redress to a consumer in terms a provincial legislation which created it.

Section 146 (2) (b) of the Constitution provides that national legislation applies uniformly with regard to the country as a whole and prevails over provincial legislation if, amongst other things, the following conditions are met:

- The national legislation deals with a matter that cannot be regulated effectively by legislation enacted by the respective provinces individually;
- The national legislation deals with a matter that, to be dealt with effectively, requires uniformity across the nation, and the national legislation provides that uniformity by establishing:

- (i) norms and standards;
- (ii) frameworks; or
- (iii) national policies
- The national legislation is necessary for the-
 - protection of the common market in respect of the mobility of goods, services, capital and labour;
 - promotion of economic activities across provincial boundaries;
 - promotion of equal opportunity or equal access to government services;

The Consumer Protection Act entrenches national consumer protection policy as well as norms and standards.

The NCC had changed its strategy in the 2012/13 financial year and it has commenced delivering on this revised strategy in the 2013/14 financial year. Essentially, the NCC sought to encourage consumers and suppliers to attempt to resolve their disputes amongst themselves, prior to referring these complaints to the NCC. This document reflects a revised strategy without altering the essence of the 2012/13 strategy except that in line with recommendations made by Minister and the DPSA that NCC's strategy should largely relate to implementing its legislative mandate.

In order to expand conciliation and mediation fora for the resolution of consumer complaints, the NCC will continue approaching key industries or sectors to assist in the establishment of industry/ sector ombud schemes. This approach serves to benefit consumers and business. Consumers will be able to seek accessible, free and speedy conciliation and mediation services on their consumer related disputes. These

disputes will ordinarily be dealt with by persons who should be familiar with the nature of the transactions as these are endemic within the particular industry or sector. This would enable the NCC to monitor consumer disputes per industry and or sector. In monitoring the complaints dealt with by these alternate dispute resolution schemes, the NCC will be able to identify pervasive harmful business practices as well as emerging harmful trends emanating from these industries and or sectors. Interventions by the NCC can therefore be meaningful. This is vital, as the spirit of the Act did not envisage that the NCC should have experts within its staff members to deal with the complex complaints of each and every sector or industry. Ultimately, another key focus of the NCC would include the monitoring of the accredited ombud schemes.

Minister has thus far approved that the Motor Industry Ombud (MIOSA) and the Consumer Goods and Services Ombud (CGSO) will be the ADR agents implementing the respective codes. All complaints related to the motor industry and to the fast moving consumer goods industries are now mainly dealt with by the MIOSA and CGSO. The complainants will refer their complaints directly to these ombuds and those complaints lodged with the NCC or the Provincial Consumer Affairs would also be referred to these ombuds as per referral protocols. The NCC and the accredited ombuds have commenced developing mechanisms and entered into an arrangements in relation to the reporting of performance and utilization of resources.

Insofar as investigations are concerned, despite the increasing demand, the NCC is unable to investigate every consumer complaint. This is neither possible nor feasible given the resources at its disposal. Instead, the NCC will continue to focus on the investigation of systemic unfair conduct based on criteria that are in line with its enforcement strategy. Investigations will be conducted so as to promote market integrity and transparency by addressing unethical or unscrupulous conduct and promoting better disclosure of information. Apart from the enforcement criteria, investigations and or other regulatory interventions by the NCC, are also informed by research and complaints trend analysis. The

NCC intends increasing its access to consumer complaints databases in order to obtain better and more reliable trends analysis. This approach is in line with international practice (of like regulators).

Consumer safety will invariably be promoted so as to ensure that consumers are supplied with reliable goods and services which are safe for consumer health and life as well as for the environment. In order to promote the supply of safe consumer goods and services, the NCC will continue working closely with, amongst other regulators, the National Regulator for Compulsory Specifications (NRCS), South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) and the South African Revenue Service (SARS). The facilitation and monitoring of recall of unsafe products is a critical function of the NCC. In the absence of its own product testing facilities, coupled with the lack of financial resources that are normally associated with product tests, the NCC will continue to rely on entities like NRCS and SABS. The scanning of product recalls by regulators in other jurisdictions will be factored in.

It is still evident that the vast majority of consumers do not lodge complaints. Consumers who are unaware of their rights as consumers, will not complain. The genuine need to increase awareness of consumers' rights remain. It is also evident, that whilst suppliers are aware of their obligations in terms of the Consumer Protection Act, this is not the case for all suppliers. A greater need exists for small and medium enterprises to be made aware of their obligations. The NCC intends to continue encouraging suppliers to comply with the consumer protection legislative framework. Awareness does lead to increased compliance. To this end, awareness initiatives for both consumers and suppliers are intrinsic to the NCC's enforcement function.

Following the receipt of a qualified audit in the 2012-13 financial year, the NCC subsequently focussed on implementing compliance related processes so as to enable it to comply with the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and directives. This resulted in the NCC receiving an unqualified

audit for the 2013-14; 2014-15 and 2015-16 financial years. The compliance burden on the NCC has been increasing. This impacts on all officials and on the NCC's efficacy to deal with its core mandate. The NCC has been saddled with a poor compliance history and it will endeavour to maintain and improve on its internal controls. This will be largely guided by findings made by internal and external auditors as well as the assessments performed by its Executive Authority.

11.2 Organisational Delivery Environment

The NCC is an organ of state and is a Schedule 3A entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA). The entity is established by section 85 of the CPA.

In terms of section 87 of the CPA, the Commissioner of the NCC is responsible for all matters pertaining to the functions of the NCC and is required to hold office for an agreed term, not exceeding five years. Provision is however made for reappointment on expiry of an agreed term of office.

The NCC does not have a Board. The Commissioner is the accounting authority for the NCC, duly assisted by the Deputy Commissioner and as such, is responsible for all income and expenditure of the NCC; revenue collected by the NCC; assets and the discharge of all liabilities of the NCC; as well as the proper and diligent implementation of the PFMA in relation to the NCC. Thus, Parliament, the Executive Authority and the Commissioner are responsible for corporate governance.

The Commissioner has, as permitted, assigned management and or other duties to employees with appropriate skills to assist the NCC in the management, or control over the functioning of the entity by way of written and approved delegations of authority. He has duly delegated,

certain powers or functions to suitably qualified employees of the NCC. However such delegation does not divest the Commissioner of responsibility for the exercise of any power or performance of any duty.

The Minister has designated a Deputy Commissioner to assist the Commissioner and to perform the functions of the NCC whenever the Commissioner is unable for any reason to perform the functions of the Commissioner; or the position of the Commissioner is vacant. The Minister of Trade and Industry, in consultation with the Minister of Finance, determines the Commissioner's and Deputy Commissioner's remuneration, allowances, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment.

Parliament, through the Portfolio Committee on Trade and Industry (Portfolio Committee) exercises its oversight role through evaluating the performance of the NCC by interrogating its strategic and annual performance plans, quarterly reports and annual financial statements and other relevant documents which have to be tabled, as well as any other documents tabled from time to time. The Portfolio Committee also exercises oversight over the service delivery performance of the NCC and, in doing so, reviews the non-financial information contained in the annual reports of the NCC.

Oversight by the Executive Authority rests by and large on the prescripts of the PFMA. The PFMA grants authority to the Executive Authority for the exercise of its oversight powers.

The Executive Authority enters into a Shareholders Compact with the NCC and a performance agreement with the Commissioner, both, on an annual basis. A Compliance Schedule is included as part of the Shareholders Compact indicating the deliverables and due dates of all

documents as stipulated in the PFMA, Treasury Regulations and the Shareholders Compact. Compliance is reported on quarterly and annually whereas management accounts are submitted monthly. Reports are also provided from time to time on matters of significance.

The NCC currently has an approved structure that makes provision for 182 full-time positions. However, only 85 positions out of the 182 approved positions are funded. Given the existing fiscal status, the likelihood of receiving an increase in the budget allocation that would enable the NCC to fill all unfunded posts, is remote. In order to assist in giving effect to its strategy and annual performance plan, a review of the NCC structure is in the process of being finalised with the assistance of the DPSA. Following the review, unnecessary vacant positions will be abandoned and only key vacant positions will be filled. The review of the structure will not result in any retrenchments. Going forward, the NCC largely intends decreasing its approved structure to coincide with funded posts.

A skills audit has been conducted at the NCC, it is apparent that a major skills shortage does exist within the entity. An appropriate skills upgrade programme is underway.

The NCC has entered into a recognition agreement with NEHAWU. As it stands, the NCC has adopted the salary scales, benefits and increments as determined by the Minister of the Department of Public Service and Administration. The Executive Authority is in the process of facilitating the establishment of bargaining chambers for its entities. NCC officials are members of the GEPF. Officials are prevented by the Government Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS) from participating in GEMS. However, the usual benefits applicable to employees as negotiated at the PSCBC in relation to employees on levels 1-12 are granted to NCC employees on these levels.

Corporate governance at the NCC embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on the CPA, corporate governance is applied through the precepts of the PFMA and run in tandem with the principles contained in the King Reports on Corporate Governance.

In line with the requirements of the PFMA, the NCC has an Audit and Risk Committee. The membership thereof is made up of independent persons. The said Committee also provides for one ex-officio member to serve thereon at the behest of the Executive Authority.

Risk management is integral to corporate governance at the NCC. A risk strategy is implemented and revised from time to time. A risk register is in place and monitored regularly and reported on at Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

Internal audit assists the Accounting Authority in maintaining efficient and effective controls by evaluating those controls to determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by developing recommendations for enhancement or improvement. The NCC has outsourced the internal audit function. Internal audit, in consultation with and the approval of the Audit and Risk Committee, ordinarily prepares and submits –

- a) a rolling three-year strategic internal audit plan based on its assessment of key areas of risk for the institution, having regard to its current operations, those proposed in its strategic plan and its risk management strategy;
- b) an annual internal audit plan for the first year of the rolling three year strategic internal audit plan;
- c) plans indicating the proposed scope of each audit in the annual internal audit plan; and
- d) reports to the Audit and Risk Committee detailing its performance against the annual internal audit plan, to allow effective monitoring and possible intervention.

Internal Audit reports administratively to the Accounting Authority and functionally to the Audit and Risk Committee. The function is independent of activities that are audited, with no limitation on its access to information.

The NCC has approved a Fraud Prevention Plan (Plan) which is regularly canvassed with staff. No acts of fraud have occurred over the last four years. As a part of the Plan, mechanisms are in place to report fraud and corruption. In order to promote fraud prevention, a whistleblowing policy is in place which makes provision for officials to make confidential disclosure about suspected fraud and corruption.

11.3 Alignment to the dti

The main objective of the **dti**'s CCRD unit is to create a **fair regulatory environment** that enables investment, trade and enterprise development in an equitable and **socially responsible** manner and promote a professional, competitive and customer-focused working environment that ensures effective and efficient service delivery.

In line with the prescripts of the Act, the NCC contributes to the **dti**'s growth path by freeing up / increasing funding in the SA economy for investment / productive purposes through promoting compliance with the Consumer Protection Act and thereby curtailing incidences of prohibited business practice. Moreover, enforcing the said Act consistently, certainty is created which adds to confidence amongst suppliers/business.

12. Description of the Planning Process

Since March 2014, the Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner have been assessing the NCC's core mandate and deliverables. These assessments were done on a one on one basis with heads of divisions and other key staff and canvassed at length in Management Committee and Executive Committee meetings.

13. Financial Plan

(i) Projections of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities

Financial Performance data in R'000s

Details	2017/18	2018/19	2019/2020
Transfers received	60 914	64 447	68 056
Interest received	1 695	1 788	1 888
Total revenue	62 609	66 235	69 944
Compensation of employees	42 617	44 979	47 498
Salary & wages	38 585	40 717	42 997
Social contributions (employer contributions only)	4 032	4 262	4 501
Use of goods and services	19 992	21 256	22 446
Administrative fees	339	652	745
Advertising	1 136	1 115	1 121
Assets less than R5 000	20	25	26
Audit costs	1 662	1 887	1 993
Bank charges	28	29	31
Catering: internal activities	205	292	308

Details	2017/18	2018/19	2019/2020
Communication	714	977	1 032
Computer services	391	414	437
Consultants	627	663	700
Contractors	1 982	2 097	2 214
Consumables / Inventory	248	262	277
Lease Payments	6 356	6 715	7 091
Legal fees	735	800	845
Non-life insurance	88	92	97
Printing and publication	898	950	1 003
Repairs and maintenance	104	111	117
Property payments	500	512	541
Research and development	340	360	380
Training and staff development	171	181	191
Travel and subsistence	1 100	642	678
Venues and facilities	393	412	435
Depreciation and amortisation	1 955	2 068	2 184
Total expenses	62 609	66 235	69 944
Surplus / (Deficit)	-	-	-

ii. Asset and Liability Management	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
Assets			
Current Assets			
Trade and other receivables from non- exchange transactions	20	30	30
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions	30	20	20
Cash and cash equivalents	7 308	7 462	7 462
Current Assets	7 358	7 512	7 512
Non-Current Assets			
Property, plant & equipment	3 600	3 500	3 500
Intangible assets	1 594	1 300	1 300
Non-Current Assets	5 194	4 800	4 800
Total Assets	12 552	12 312	12 312
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions	2 140	1 800	1 800
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions	2 140	1 800	1 800
Provisions	1 497	1 597	1 597
Total liabilities	3 637	3 397	3 397
Assets	12 552	12 312	12 312
Liabilities	(3 637)	(3 397)	(3 397)
Net assets	8 915	8 915	8 915
Accumulated surplus	8 915	8 915	8 915

iii. Cash Flow Projections	2017/18	2018/19	2019/2020
Receipts	62 609	66 235	69 944
Transfer received	60 914	64 447	68 056
Interest received	1 695	1 788	1 888
Payments	62 609	66 235	69 944
Employee costs	42 617	44 979	47 498
Operating expenditure	19 992	21 256	22 446
Cash flow from operating activities	-	-	-
Cash flow from investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant & equipment	(1 000)	(650)	(650)
Purchase of intangible assets	(300)	(300)	(300)
Net cash flow from investing activities	(1 300)	(950)	(950)
Total cash & cash equivalents movement	(1 300)	(950)	(950)

(iv) Capital expenditure projects

- Records management system
- Computer equipment
- Furniture
- (v) Infrastructure plans; and N/A
- (vi) **Dividend policies** N/A

Part B: Programme Performance

14. Programme 1 -Administration

14.1 Purpose of the programme:

Programme 1: Administration comprises the leadership and Corporate services functions. The Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner are responsible for leadership and direction in respect of the strategic objectives and operation of the NCC as a whole. Corporate Services, on the other hand, is critical to the operation of the NCC, in that, it is responsible for Finance, Supply Chain, Human Resources, Information and Communication Technology, and Records Management.

14.2 Description of the programme:

To improve on the governance, compliance and resource requirements of the entity.

14.3 Performance indicators and performance targets per programme

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audited Actual Performance			Estimate Performanc e	Me	dium Term Targe	ets
		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2017/18	2018/19
To improve on the governance, compliance and resource requirements of the entity.	Effective ICT Services	Percentage (%) of ICT strategy implemented	Not part of 2013/14 target	The ICT Strategy developed and approved, and in process of being	Not part of 2015/16 target	70% of ICT Strategy implemented	ICT strategy fully implemented.	Review ICT Strategy	Review ICT Strategy

Goal/ Outcome		Performance Indicator/	Audited Actual Performance			Estimate Performanc e	Medium Term Targets		
		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2017/18	2018/19
				implement ed.					

14.4 Quarterly milestones

Goal/		Performance	Baseline	2017/18	Quarterly Milestones					
Outcome	Output	Indicator/ Measure	Info	Annual Target	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter		
To improve on the governance, compliance and resource requirements of the entity.	1. Effective ICT Services	Percentage (%) of ICT strategy implemented	2016/17 baseline	ICT strategy fully implemented.	20% ICT strategy implemented	50% ICT strategy implemented	80% ICT strategy implemented	100% ICT strategy implemented		

14.5 Financial Plan (Expenditure estimates for programme 1)

Administration												
Economic classification	E	xpenditure outcome		Adjusted Appropriation	Medium-Term Expenditure Estimate		stimate					
	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20					
	R' 000	R '000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000					
Compensation of employees	18 229	21 020	15 213	16 234	17 132	18 081	19 094					
Goods & services	10 966	13 674	12 961	15 473	16 005	17 037	17 991					
Total expenditure	29 195	34 694	28 174	31 707	33 137	35 118	37 085					

15. Programme 2- To promote Consumer Protection and Consumer Safety

15.1 Purpose of the programme:

The goal is to ensure consumer protection and consumer safety through the enforcement of the provisions of the Consumer Protect Act and to facilitate an environment that enables resolution of disputes between consumers and suppliers that is expedient, cost effective, fair and transparent.

15.2 **Description of the programme**

The functions in relation to this objective are performed by the Legal Division and the Enforcement and Investigations Division

The purpose is to:

- (i) Facilitate an environment that enables resolution of disputes between consumers and suppliers that is expedient, cost effective, fair and transparent.
- (ii) Conduct inspections and investigations so as to enforce the provisions of the Consumer Protection Act thereby ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Consumer protection Act;
- (iii) Make applications to the National Consumer Tribunal for declaration of various conduct as prohibited conduct;
- (iv) Facilitate, conduct and monitor product recalls;
- (v) Establish or recognize as authoritative, a registry in which any person may register a pre-emptive block against any communication that is primarily for the purpose of direct marketing

15.3 Performance indicators and performance targets per programme

Attention is drawn to the fact that the NCC, in these formative years, has found it difficult to establish baselines that are reliable. This arose from a change in strategy in 2012 following innumerable legitimate objections by stakeholders to its initial strategy and approach.

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audit	ed Actual Perf	ormance	Estimated Performance	M	edium Term Targe	Term Targets	
Outcome	·	measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	
Facilitate an environment that enables resolution of disputes between consumers and suppliers that is expedient, cost effective, fair and	2. Complaints processed timeously	Percentage (%) of complaints referred or issued with non- referrals in a pre- defined time period	Not part of 2013/14 target	Not part of 2014/15 target	96% (6567 out of 6794) complaints received referred or issued with non-referrals in 13 days	90% Complaints processed on an average of 20 days of receipt.	95% complaints referred or issued with non- referrals on an average of 25 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non- referrals on an average of 20 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non- referrals on an average of 20 days	
transparent.	3. Accredited Ombud Scheme/s monitored regularly	Report on accredited ombuds in line with the published codes of conduct or as agreed with the supplier.	Not part of 2013/14 targets	Not part of 2014/15 targets	The Motor Industry Ombud (MIOSA) has reported quarterly to the NCC since Quarter 2. The reporting is in line with the approved Code. The reports have been assessed and queries	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive	

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audit	ed Actual Perf	ormance	Estimated Performance	M	edium Term Targe	ts
Outcome	i i	measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
					have been				
					raised. The				
					reports were				
					included in				
					the quarterly				
					reports to the				
					Executive				
					Authority.				
					The				
					Consumer				
					Goods and				
					Services				
					Ombud				
					(CGSO) has				
					commenced				
					reporting to				
					the NCC				
					during the				
					second				
					half of the				
					year. The				
					reports				
					have been				
					assessed and				
					queries have				
					been raised.				
					The reports				
					were included				
					in the				
					quarterly				
					reports to the				
					Executive				
					Authority.				

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audite	ed Actual Perfo	ormance	Estimated Performance	M	edium Term Targe	rm Targets		
Outcome	o an posit	measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20		
	4. Industry Codes recommended to Minister for approval	Recommend compliant Industry Code for accreditation to Minister	1 Industry Code recommend ed to Minister	Compliant Consumer Goods and Services Code recommend ed to Minister within six (6) months. Code accredited by Minister	Draft codes were received and assessed: 1. Advertising Standards Authority of South Africa (ASASA) 2. Franchise Association of South Africa (FASA) 3. COFFIMSA code (funeral services). The following code was amended: COFFIMSA code in consultation with COFFIMSA	Recommend a compliant Industry Code to Minister for accreditation within 6 months of receipt of compliant code.	Recommend a compliant Industry Code to Minister for accreditation within 6 months of receipt of compliant code.	Recommend a compliant Industry Code to Minister for accreditation within 6 months of receipt of compliant code.	Recommend a compliant Industry Code to Minister for accreditation within 6 months of receipt of compliant code.		
	5. Codes of good practice developed and approved by Commissioner	Codes of good practice developed	Draft section 93 code of good practice for the return of vehicles within the motor industry is	The code relating to interpretatio n of rights as contained in section 23 to 28 has been developed	The code of practice on towing services was not developed.	One code of good practice on Alternative Dispute Resolution norms and standards will be developed in terms of section 93 (1)	Review Codes of good practice developed and revise where necessary	One code of good practice developed	Review of Codes of good practice developed		

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audite	ed Actual Perfo	rmance	Estimated Performance	M	edium Term Targe	ts
Outcome		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
			still under developmen t	and approved for publication.		(d) of the CPA.			
Conduct inspections and investigations so as to enforce the provisions of the Consumer Protection Act thereby ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Consumer protection Act	6. Investigations conducted and reports produced.	Number of investigations conducted and reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner.	In total, 41 Investigatio ns and Inspections have been finalised and reports drafted and approved by the Commission er	18 investigation s finalised and approved by the Commission er	investigations were concluded and reports were produced	investigations conducted, reports with recommendati ons produced and approved by Commissioner	investigations conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	investigations conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	investigations conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner
	7. Inspections conducted and reports produced.	Number of Inspections conducted and reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner.	Not part of 2013/14 target	34 Inspections conducted and reports produced	Fifty seven (57) inspections conducted, approved and finalised during the year. Reports produced thereon	22 inspections conducted, reports with recommendati ons produced and approved by Commissioner	22 inspections conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	22 inspections conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	22 inspections conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner
Make applications to the National Consumer Tribunal for declaration of	8. Applications made to the National Consumer Tribunal to	Percentage of Applications made to the National Consumer Tribunal to declare certain	Not part of 2013/14 targets	Not part of 2014/15 targets	Not part of 2015/ 16 targets	Two applications made to the National Consumer	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audit	ed Actual Perfo	ormance	Estimated Performance	M	edium Term Targe	ts
Outcome		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
various conduct as prohibited conduct	declare certain investigated conduct as prohibited conduct	investigated conduct as prohibited conduct in a pre-defined time period				Tribunal to declare certain investigated conduct as prohibited conduct	Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.
Facilitate, conduct and monitor product recalls	9. Administer and monitor product recalls	Report on all product recalls in the line with the published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	Not part of 2013/14 targets	Not part of 2014/15	43 product recalls were received, registered and monitored in line with the published guidelines. produced	Produce a report on the administration and monitoring of the product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	Produce a report on the administration and monitoring of the product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	Produce a report on the administration and monitoring of the product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	Produce a report on the administration and monitoring of the product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.
Establish or recognize as authoritative, a registry in which any person may register a preemptive block against any communication that is primarily for the	10. Opt Out Registry established, implemented and maintained	Procurement and Appointment of Service Provider and commence with establishment process	Not part of 2013/14 targets	Not part of 2014/15	Opt out Register benchmarked; Project Registered as Public Private Partnership project with	Finalise appointment of Transactional adviser. Finalise feasibility study; Commence with	Complete Procurement of Registry; Enter into management agreement. Commence with establishment of Registry.	Finalise establishment of Registry. Implement, maintain and monitor the registry as per management agreement.	Implement, maintain and monitor register as per management agreement.

Goal/	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audited Actual Performance			Estimated Performance	Medium Term Targets		
Outcome	·	measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
purpose of direct marketing					National Treasury; Secured budget of R2m from Treasury; Appointed external project manager;	procurement of registry.			

15.4 Quarterly milestones

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	e 2017/18 Quarterly Milestones Annual Target					
- Cuissiiis	o a spar	Measure	0	Ailliuai Taiget	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter	
Facilitate an environment that enables resolution of disputes between	2. Complaints processed timeously	Percentage (%) of complaints processed in a pre-defined time period	2015/16 baseline	95% complaints referred or issued with non- referrals on an average of 30 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non-referrals on an average of 30 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non-referrals on an average of 30 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non-referrals on an average of 30 days	95% complaints referred or issued with non-referrals on an average of 30 days	
consumers and suppliers that is expedient, cost effective, fair and transparent.	3. Accredited Ombud Scheme/s are monitored regularly	Report on accredited ombuds in line with the published codes of conduct or as agreed with the supplier.	2015/16 baseline	. Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	Compile quarterly assessment report and submit to Executive Authority	

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18		Quarterly N	Milestones	
Outcome	Output	Measure	11110	Annual Target	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
	4. Industry Codes recommended to Minister for approval	Recommend compliant Industry Code for accreditation to Minister	2015/16 baseline	Recommend a compliant Industry Code to Minister for accreditation within 6 months of receipt of compliant code.	Identify industry and consult with stakeholders. Develop guidelines	Consultation with stakeholders	Receipt of compliant code; Perusal and publication of code; Consultation with stakeholders.	Consultation with stakeholders; Approval of code by Commissioner; Recommendation of code to Minister for accreditation.
	5. Codes of good practice developed and approved by Commissioner	Codes of good practice developed	2015/16 baseline	Review Codes of good practice developed and revise where necessary	Assess existing codes of good practice	Revise Codes if necessary	Consult stakeholders on revision	Revised code/s approved by Commissioner and published for implementation.
Conduct inspections and investigations so as to enforce the provisions of the Consumer Protection Act thereby	6. Investigations conducted and reports produced.	Number of investigations conducted and reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner.	2015/16 baseline	investigations conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	2 investigations conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	4 investigations conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	4 investigations conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	2 investigations conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.
ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Consumer Protection Act	7. Inspections conducted and reports produced.	Number of Inspections conducted and reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner.	2015/16 baseline	22 inspections conducted, reports with recommendations produced and approved by Commissioner	4 inspections conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	7 inspections conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	7 inspections conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	4 inspections conducted and reports produced and approved by Commissioner.

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18 Annual Target	Quarterly Milestones				
		Measure		Aiman raiget	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter	
Make applications to the National Consumer Tribunal for declaration of various conduct as prohibited conduct	8. Applications made to the National Consumer Tribunal to declare certain investigated conduct as prohibited conduct	Percentage of Applications made to the National Consumer Tribunal to declare certain investigated conduct as prohibited conduct		File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	File 90% of approved investigated matters in the National Consumer Tribunal to declare conduct as prohibited within 60 days of approval.	
Facilitate, conduct and monitor product recalls	9. Administer and monitor product recalls	Report on all product recalls in the line with the published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	2015/16 baseline	Produce a report on the administration and monitoring of the product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier.	Receive, register, analyse; and monitor product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier. Report produced	Receive, register, analyse; and monitor product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier. Report produced	Receive, register, analyse; and monitor product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier. Report produced	Receive, register, analyse; and monitor product recalls in line with published Product Recall guidelines or as agreed with the supplier. Report produced	

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18 Annual Target	Quarterly Milestones				
		Measure		Aimai raiget	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter	
Establish or recognize as authoritative, a registry in which any person may register a preemptive block against any communication that is primarily for the purpose of direct marketing	10. Opt Out Registry established, implemented and maintained	Procurement and Appointment of Service Provider and commence with establishment process	2015/16 baseline	Complete Procurement of Registry; Enter into management agreement Commence with establishment of Registry.	Commence with procurement of the Registry and reports produced as per project plan.	Finalize procurement of Registry and reports produced as per project plan	Enter into management agreement and commence with establishment of Registry and reports produced as per project plan	Continue with establishment of Registry and reports produced as per project plan.	

15.5 Financial Plan (Expenditure estimates for programme 2)

onsumer Safety and Protection Economic classification		Expenditure outcom	e	Adjusted Appropriation	Medium-Term Expenditure Estimate			
	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	
	R' 000	R '000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	

Compensation of employees	7 011	8 085	17 226	17 895	18 887	19 935	21 051
Goods & services	4 218	5 259	1 490	1 317	1 423	1 535	2 353
Total expenditure	11 229	13 344	18 716	19 212	20 310	21 470	23 404

16. Programme 3- To promote reform of consumer policy and consumer protection legislation

16.1 Purpose of the programme:

Reform consumer legislation in order to achieve the progressive transformation and improvement of practices that are inconsistent with the CPA

16.2 **Description of the programme**:

The functions in relation to this objective are performed by the Legal Division and the Enforcement and Investigations Division

The functions in relation to this objective are performed by the Legal Division

The purpose is to:

- i) Advise Minister on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally throughout the Republic;
- ii) Identify legislation that affects the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA. Develop proposals and recommendations to Minister for reform of practices that are inconsistent with the CPA.
- iii) Provide guidance to the public by issuing explanatory notes and/or non-binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA;
- iv) Apply to a court for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA;

16.3 Performance indicators and performance targets per programme

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	,	ed Actual Perf		Estimated Performanc e	Me	dium Term Tarç	gets
		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
Advise Minister on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally throughout the Republic	11. Conduct research on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and advise Minister	Number of research projects conducted on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and advice provided to Minister	Not part of 2013/ 14 targets	Not part of 2014/ 15 targets	Three (3) research reports on: 1.State of Consumer Protection in South Africa; 1. Sales in Execution; and 3. Private Sales produced and signed off by the Commissioner.	Survey Consumer Protection Awareness amongst rural consumers on norms and standards relating to advertisemen ts, agreements, marks, instructions, and labelling.	Conduct one research project relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and make recommendations to Minister	Conduct one research project relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and make recommendati ons to Minister	Conduct one research project relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and make recommendations to Minister
Identify	12. Develop and	Number of	Not part of	Not part of	Not part of	Identify one	Identify two	Identify two	Identify two Acts
legislation that affects the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop	submit proposals for reform of practices inconsistent with the CPA	proposals developed on legislation affecting the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA	2013/14 targets	2014/15 targets	2015/16 targets	Act that affects the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for	Acts that affect the welfare of consumers which are inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for	Acts that affect the welfare of consumers which are inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for	that affect the welfare of consumers which are inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audit	ed Actual Perf	ormance	Estimated Performanc e	Me	gets	
		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
proposals for reform of practices						reform of practices, report approved by Commissioner for submission to Minister.	reform of practices, report approved by Commissioner for submission to Minister.	reform of practices, report approved by Commissioner for submission to Minister.	reform of practices, report approved by Commissioner for submission to Minister
Provide guidance to the public by issuing explanatory notes and/or non-binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA	13. Issue explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA	Percentage (%) of requests for explanatory notes and /or non- binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA provided within a pre- defined time period	Not part of 2013/ 14 targets	Not part of 2014/ 15 targets	100% requests for advice responded to on an average of 10 days.	80 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 20 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days
Apply to a court for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA	14. Apply for declaratory orders on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA.	Apply for declaratory orders on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA.	Not part of 2013/ 14 targets	Not part of 2014/15 targets	Not part of 2015/16 targets	File one application for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of a provision of the CPA.	File one application for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of a provision of the CPA.	File one application for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of a provision of the CPA.	File one application for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of a provision of the CPA

National Consumer Commission (NCC) Annual Performance Plan 2017/18-2019/20 draft 3 v1

16.4 **Quarterly Milestones**

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18 Annual Target		Quarterly	Milestones	
		Measure		3.1	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
Advise Minister on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determinatio n of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally throughout the Republic	11. Conduct research on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and advise Minister	Number of research projects conducted on matters relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and advice provided to Minister	Not part of 2015/16 target	Conduct one research project relating to consumer protection and on the determination of national norms and standards regarding consumer protection in terms of the CPA that should apply generally and make recommendations to Minister)	Terms of reference for the following research developed and presented to EXCO and approved. (to be determined)	Appointment of service provider to conduct research. Research commenced; Progress reports produced on research project	All Research concluded. One Draft research report prepared and presented to EXCO for inputs.	One Research report finalized; signed off by the Commissioner and submitted to Minister

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18 Annual Target		Quarterly	Milestones	
	Сифи	Measure			1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
Identify legislation that affects the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for reform of practices	12. Develop and submit proposals for reform of practices inconsistent with the CPA	Number of proposals developed on legislation affecting the welfare of consumers which is inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA	Not part of 2015/16 target	Identify two Acts that affect the welfare of consumers which are inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA and develop proposals for reform of practices, report approved by Commissioner for submission to Minister.	Identify two Acts that affects the welfare of consumers which are inconsistent with the purposes of the CPA	Assess and analyse Legislation and produce 2 reports	Develop proposals for reform of practices. Draft two Reports	Finalise report and submit to Commissioner for approvalr.
Provide guidance to the public by issuing explanatory notes and/or non-binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA	13. Issue explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA	Percentage (%) of requests for explanatory notes and /or non- binding opinions on the interpretation of provisions of the CPA provided within a pre- defined time period	2015/16 baseline	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days	90 % of registered requests for explanatory notes and /or non-binding opinions provided within an average of 10 days

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Baseline Info	2017/18 Annual Target		Quarterly	Milestones	
		Measure		3	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
Apply to a court for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA	14. Apply for declaratory orders on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA.	Applyfor declaratory orders on the interpretation or application of any provision of the CPA.	Not part of 2014/15 targets	Make one application for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of a provision of the CPA.	Identify subject of declaratory order and brief legal counsel.	Prepare application for declaratory order	File application for declaratory order	Publish order if order secured

16.5 Financial Plan (Expenditure estimates for programme 3)

Economic classification	Expenditure outcome			Adjusted Appropriation	Medium-Term Expenditure Estimate			
	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	
	R' 000	R '000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	
Goods & services				1 400	1 345	1 232	1 301	
Total expenditure				1 400	1 345	1 232	1 301	

17. Programme 4 - To conduct research and to promote public awareness on consumer protection matters

17.1 Purpose of the programme:

To increase knowledge on the nature and dynamics of the consumer market and promote public awareness on consumer protection matters by implementing education and information measures to develop public awareness of the provisions of the CPA

17.2 **Description of the programme**:

The functions in relation to this objective are performed by the Research and Advocacy, Education and Awareness Divisions.

The purpose is to:

- (i) Conduct targeted consumer workshops as well as business focused workshops and presentations aimed at facilitating a better understanding of the Act;
- (ii) Analyse complaints and market conduct and develop trends analysis reports which would serve to assist the NCC in determining its intervention strategies.
- (iii) Conduct research and propose policy changes to the Minister in relation to any matter affecting the supply of goods and services, that would improve the realization and full enjoyment of consumer rights;

17.3 Performance indicators and performance targets per programme

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Performance Indicator/	Audite	d Actual Perf	ormance	Estimated Performanc e	Me	edium Term Tar	gets
		measure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
Conduct targeted consumer workshops as well as business focused	15. Consumer awareness workshops conducted in the different provinces	Number of consumer awareness workshops conducted	17 Workshops conducted.	Thirteen (13) workshops held in the year	25 Consumer Workshops were held in the year	24 consumer awareness workshops conducted	24 consumer awareness workshops conducted	24 consumer awareness workshops conducted	24 consumer awareness workshops conducted
workshops and presentations aimed at facilitating a better	16. Business compliance workshops conducted in different provinces	Number of business compliance workshops conducted in different provinces	Not part of 2013/ 14 target	Not part of 2014/15 target	15 Business Workshops were held in the year	12 business compliance workshops conducted.	12 business compliance workshops conducted.	12 business compliance workshops conducted.	12 business compliance workshops conducted
understanding of the Act;	17. Publish and distribute educational material to consumers	Number of newsletters published and distributed to consumers in predetermined frequencies	Not part of 2013/ 14 target	Not part of 2014/15 target	1 external newsletter was approved published and distributed in time. The other was approved but printing thereof was delayed.	3 External Newsletters published and distributed to stakeholders.	4 External Newsletters published and distributed to stakeholders.	4 External Newsletters published and distributed to stakeholders.	4 External Newsletters published and distributed to stakeholders.
Analyse complaints and market	18. Complaints analysed, trends	100% of complaints registered	Not part of 2013/ 14 targets	Not part of 2014/15 targets	100% of registered consumer	100% of registered consumer	100% of registered consumer	100% of registered consumer	100% of registered consumer

Goal/ Outcome	Output	Output Indicator/		Estimated Performanc e	Medium Term Targets		gets		
		illeasure	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20
conduct and develop trends analysis reports which would serve to assist the NCC in determining its intervention strategies.	established and reports produced	analysed, trends established and report produced.			complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner	complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner.

17.4 Quarterly Milestones

Goal/	Outmut	Performance	Baseline	2017/18		Quarterly	Milestones	
Outcome	Output	Indicator/ Measure	Info	Annual Target	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
Conduct	15. Consumer	Number of	2015/16	24 consumer	5 Workshops	7 Workshops	7 Workshops	5 Workshops
targeted	awareness	consumer	baseline	awareness	coordinated	conducted	conducted	conducted
consumer	workshops	awareness		workshops				
workshops	conducted in	workshops		conducted				
as well as	the different	conducted						
business	provinces							

Goal/	Outunt	Performance	Baseline	2017/18		Quarterly	Milestones	
Outcome	Output	Indicator/ Measure	Info	Annual Target	1st Quarter	2nd Quarter	3rd Quarter	4th Quarter
focused workshops and presentation s aimed at facilitating a	16. Business compliance workshops conducted in different provinces	Number of business compliance workshops conducted in different provinces	2015/16 baseline	12 business compliance workshops conducted.	2 Workshops conducted	5 Workshops conducted	2 Workshops conducted	3 Workshops conducted
better understandin g of the Act;	17. Publish and distribute educational material to consumers	Number of newsletters published and distributed to consumers in predetermined frequencies	2014/15 baseline	4 External Newsletters published and distributed to stakeholders.	1 External newsletter developed, and approved by Commissioner for publication and distribution to consumers	1 External newsletter developed, and approved by Commissioner for publication and distribution to consumers	1 External newsletter developed, and approved by Commissioner for publication and distribution to consumers	1 External newsletter developed, and approved by Commissioner for publication and distribution to consumers
Analyse complaints and market conduct and develop trends analysis reports which would serve to assist the NCC in determining its intervention strategies.	18. Complaints analysed, trends established and reports produced	100% of complaints registered analysed, trends established and report produced.	2014/15 baseline	100% of registered consumer complaints analysed, trends established and an annual and quarterly reports produced and approved by Commissioner.	100% of registered complaints analysed, trends established and report produced for quarter	100% of registered complaints analysed, trends established and report produced for quarter	100% of registered complaints analysed, trends established and report produced for quarter	100% of registered complaints analysed, trends established and report produced for quarter. Quarterly reports consolidated and annual report produced and approved by Commissioner

17.5 Financial Plan (Expenditure estimates for programme 4)

Economic classification	E	xpenditure outcome		Adjusted Appropriation	Medium-Term Expenditure Estimate			
	2013/14	2014/15	2015/16	2016/17	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	
	R' 000	R '000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	R' 000	
Compensation of employees	2 805	3 233	5 836	6 252	6 598	6 963	7 353	
Goods & services	1 687	2 105	1 870	1 048	1 219	1 452	801	
Total expenditure	4 492	5 338	7 706	7 300	7 817	8 415	8 154	

Part C: Links to other plans

1. Asset Management Plan

The NCC does not have a formal Asset Management Plan, however it is managing its assets according to the Supply Chain Management directives and best practice guidelines issued by National Treasury. Assets are managed as follows::

- Asset verifications are being performed at least once per year, inclusive of all furniture, computer equipment and other equipment.
- The asset register on the financial system is reconciled with the outcome of the asset verification, and updated according to new purchases and disposals.

- The value of assets is accounted for according to Generally Recognized Accounting Practices (GRAP), inclusive of the provision for depreciation.
- For all assets, managers are assigned with the responsibility of safeguarding the assets and to perform quarterly asset counts.
- Asset movements are tracked by means of asset movement reports which are used to update the asset register on the financial system.

The procurement of a records management system, furniture and computer equipment are planned for the medium term, whereas certain redundant and damaged furniture and computer equipment will be replaced.

2. Information Technology Plan

The NCC has compiled an Information and Communication strategy, which provides for the following deliverables:

- An ICT plan, inclusive of an IT Governance framework
- A Disaster recovery plan
- Development and/or review of all ICT related policies
- Change management procedures
- User account and ICT security procedures
- Information back-up and retention procedures

During the medium term, the following IT related projects will be executed:

- The refinement of the customer call centre to enhance complaints recording and handling
- The implementation of automated process flows for the accounting system
- Enhancing the electronic and automated payment functionality of the accounting and payroll systems
- Enhancing the webpage of the NCC in terms of its format, lay-out and contents
- Integration and configuration of the communication systems of the NCC, being internet services, electronic mail services and telephony.

3 Risk Management and Fraud Prevention Plan

The approved anti- fraud and corruption policy is attached hereto marked Annex "A"

3.1 Risk Management Process

The approved Risk Management Strategy is attached hereto marked Annex "B"

3.2 Risk Strategy

The strategic risk register is attached herewith marked **Annex "C"**. The risks facing the NCC are being managed and updated on an on-going basis.

4. Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The Service Delivery Improvement Plan is currently being developed.

5. Any subsidiary or statutory body reporting to the entity

No subsidiary or statutory body reports to the NCC.

6. Indicator Profiles

The Indicator Profiles are attached hereto marked **Annex "D"**